
Northern Inyo Hospital

November 14 2018 Regular Meeting
November 14 2018 Regular Meeting - November 14 2018 Regular Meeting

Agenda, November 14 2018 Regular Meeting

Draft Agenda, November 14 2018 Regular Meeting

Banking RFP Results and Board Resolution 18-06

Banking Institution RFP Results and Board Resolution 18-06

Fiscal 2020 Budget Process and Calendar

Fiscal 2020 Budget Process and Calendar

Business Office Policy and Procedure Approvals (3)

Identity Theft Red Flag Rules Policy
Small Balance Write Off Policy
Credit Balance Refund Policy

Compliance Officer Quarterly Report

Compliance Department Quarterly Report

Real Estate Purchase and Resolution 18-07

Real Estate Purchase and Resolution 18-07

Consent Agenda

2013 CMS Survey Validation Monitoring, November 2018
Policy and Procedure annual approvals
Financial and Statistical reports for September 2018
Minutes, October 17 2018 Regular Meeting

Medical Executive Committee Report

Medical Executive Committee Report, November 2018
Medical Staff Policy and Procedure approvals, November 2018

..................................................2

...............................5

...............................................................8

........................................................................14
.................................................................................17

...................................................................................18

..............................................................21

...........................................................33

....................................35
.................................................................40

............................................42
............................................................50

.........................................53
..........................54

Powered by TCPDF (www.tcpdf.org)

1

http://www.tcpdf.org


                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    

DRAFT AGENDA 
NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 

November 14, 2018 at 5:30 p.m. 

682 Spruce Street, Bishop, CA  
 

 

 
  

1. Call to Order (at 5:30 pm).    

2. At this time persons in the audience may speak on any items not on the agenda on any matter 

within the jurisdiction of the District Board (Members of the audience will have an opportunity to 

address the Board on every item on the agenda.  Speakers are limited to a maximum of three 

minutes each).  

3.   New Business 

A.  Strategic Plan update, Finance Committee report (information item). 

B.  Chief Executive Officer report (information item). 

C.  Receipt and approval of NIHD Annual Audit for 2017/2018 fiscal year tabled to December  

      regular meeting (information item). 

D.  Determination of dates for January Board education (action item). 

E.  Newspaper article report on addiction services (information item). 

F.  Chief Operating Officer report (information item). 

            G.  Chief Financial Officer report (information item). 

H.  Primary Banking Institution RFP results review and approval of Board Resolution 18-06    

      (action item). 

I. Fiscal 2020 Budget Process and Calendar (action item). 

J. Identity Theft Red Flag Rules Policy (action item). 

K. Small Balance Write Off Policy (action item). 

L. Credit Balance Refund Policy (action item). 

M. Chief Nursing Officer report (information item). 

N. CDPH Survey findings and response (information item). 

O. Chief Human Resources Officer report (information item). 

P. Compliance Officer quarterly report (action item). 

4. Old Business 

2



Page, 2, Agenda, NIHD Board of Directors Regular Meeting, November 14, 2018 

 

 

11/7/2018, 11:38 AM 

A. Approval of real estate purchase (376 West Yaney Street, Bishop, California) and Board 

Resolution 18-07 (action item). 

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

                                                     Consent Agenda 

5.   Approval of minutes of the October 17 2018 regular meeting 

6. 2013 CMS Survey Validation Monitoring, November 2018 

7. Financial and Statistical reports for September 2018 

8. Policy and Procedure annual approvals 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 

9. Chief of Staff Report; Allison Robinson MD: 

A.  Policies/Procedures/Protocols/Order Sets (action items): 

1. Cardiac Monitoring 

2. Malignant Hyperthermia 

3. Pediatric and Newborn Consultation Requirements 

B. Medical Staff Appointment/Privileges (action item): 

1. Laura Sullivan, MD (cardiology, Renown) – telemedicine staff 

C. Allied Health Professional Appointments/Privileges (action items): 

1. Nancy Fong, FNP (Rural Health Clinic) 

2. Alissa Dell, FNP (Rural Health Clinic/Internal Medicine Clinic) 

D. Telemedicine Staff Appointment/Privileges – credentialing by proxy (action item) 

As per the approved Telemedicine Physician Credentialing and Privileging Agreement, and as 

outlined and allowed by 42 CFR 482.22, the Medical Staff has chosen to recommend the 

following practitioners for Telemedicine privileges relying upon Quality Nighthawk’s 

credentialing and privileging decisions: 

1. Benjamin Ge, MED (diagnostic radiology, Quality Nighthawk) 

E. Additional privileges (action item): 

1. Erik Maki, MD (interventional radiology) – new privileges in Radiofrequency 

Ablation 

2. Tammy O’Neill, PA-C (Rural Health Clinic) – new privileges as generalist Physician 

Assistant in the Rural Health Clinic 

F. Medical Staff Resignations (action items): 

1. Sheldon Kop, MD (radiology) – effective 10/30/18 

3



Page, 3, Agenda, NIHD Board of Directors Regular Meeting, November 14, 2018 

 

 

11/7/2018, 11:38 AM 

2. David Landis, MD (radiology) – effective 10/30/18 

3. Arsen Mkrtchyan, MD (internal medicine) – effective 12/31/2018 

G. Core Privilege Forms (action items): 

1. Pathology (new) 

2. Psychiatry (new) 

3. Pediatrics (revised) 

4. Obstetrics and Gynecology (revised) 

5. Family Medicine (revised) 

    10.  Reports from Board members (information items). 

  11.  Adjournment to closed session to/for:  

            A.  Confer with Legal Counsel regarding threatened litigation, 1 matter pending (pursuant to     

                  Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2)). 

   12.  Return to open session and report of any action taken in closed session.  

   13.  Adjournment. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you require special accommodations to 

participate in a District Board meeting, please contact administration at (760) 873-2838 at least 48 hours 

prior to the meeting. 

4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



Page 1 of 3 

      
NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE 

DISTRICTHEALTHCARE DISTRICT 
POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

 

Title:  Identity Theft Red Flags Rule Policy 

Scope:  Northern Inyo HealthCare 
District-which includes the hospital 
campus, the Rural Health Clinic and the 
Northern Inyo Associates Clinics 

Department:  Business Office 

Source:  FTC’s Identity Theft Prevention 
Red Flag Rules-16 C.F.R. Section 681.2 
(2008) 

Effective Date:  11/2018 

 
PURPOSE: 
As an issuer of credit to recipients of its healthcare services, Northern Inyo HealthCare 
District adopts an Identify Theft Prevention Program to assist in identifying, detecting, and 

mitigating risks of identity theft affecting patients of the Healthcare District and clinics. This 
policy is intended to comply with requirements of Federal Trade Commission’s Identity 
Theft Prevention Red Flag Rules - 16 C.F.R. Section 681.2 (2008) which is a result of the 
Fair and Accurate Credit Transactions (FACT) Act of2003. 
 
POLICY: 
It is Northern Inyo HealthCare District’s intent to provide safeguards to protect patients by 

detecting Red Flags and preventing or mitigating Identity Theft without impacting 
appropriate care of patients or compliance with the Emergency Medical Treatment and 
Active Labor Act (EMTALA). 
 
DEFINITIONS:  
l.   Identity theft - fraudulently using the identifying information of another person.  

 
ll.   Medical Identity Theft - When an individual assumes or attempts to assume the 
 identity of another person through fraudulent means or false pretenses and obtains 
 or attempts to obtain medical service or goods, or to make false claims for medical 
 services or goods.  
 
III.  Red Flag - a pattern, practice, or specific activity that indicates the possible 
 existence of Identity Theft.  

 
PROCEDURE:  

I.  IDENTIFICATION OF RED FLAGS  
 Activities involving Identity Theft generally fall within one of the following general 
 types of red flags:  
 A. Suspicious documents  
 B. Suspicious personal identifying information, such as a suspicious address  
 C. Unusual use of – or suspicious activity relating to – a covered account  
 D. Alerts from others (e.g. customer, identity theft victim, or law enforcement)  
 
 
II.  DECTECTION OF RED FLAGS 
 A. Northern Inyo HealthCare District has adopted the following procedures to aid in   
     the detection of red flags for identity theft:  

14



Page 2 of 3 

  1. New Patient Accounts  
     Obtain appropriate identifying information and insurance information. This  
     should include the following:  
   a. Full legal name  
   b. Date of Birth  
   c. Address  

d. Make copy of Government issued or other valid picture ID, e.g.   
Driver’s License  
e. When applicable, make copy of patient’s insurance card 
f.  Verify eligibility and insurance company’s information  
f.  Have patient sign Conditions of Admission 
 

  2. Existing Patient Account  
      Verify and update the personal and insurance information listed 

a. During each return patient visit have patient show valid picture ID  
b. Make copy of insurance card, including existing insurance listed 
c. Verify eligibility and insurance company’s information  

   d. Verify validity of requests for changes of billing addresses 
   e. Have patient sign Conditions of Admission with each patient visit 
   f. Verify identification of patients before releasing any personal   
       information.  
        
  3. Emergency Care – No Delay  
  Providing identification is not a condition for obtaining emergency care. The  
  process of confirming a patient’s identity must never delay the provision of an 
  appropriate medical screening examination or necessary stabilizing treatment 
  for emergency medical conditions.  
 
III.  PREVENTION AND MITIGATION OF IDENTITY THEFT  

 A. If a patient notifies Northern Inyo HealthCare District of possible identity theft in 
 regard to their medical record or bill, an investigation will be coordinated with the 
 appropriate department(s) (e.g., Patient Financial Services and Medical Records) 
 pursuant to bill, an investigation will be coordinated with the appropriate 
 department(s) (e.g., Patient Financial Services and Medical Records) pursuant to 

 Northern Inyo HealthCare District established departmental procedures.  
 
 B. In determining an appropriate response to a red flag or other threat of identity 

 theft, Northern Inyo HealthCare District will consider aggravating factors that may 
 heighten the risk of identity theft, such as a data security incident that results in 
 unauthorized access to a patient’s account records, or notice that a patient has 
 become aware of someone fraudulently claiming to obtain medical services in the 
 name of the patient.  
 
 C. Appropriate responses may include:  
 1. Monitoring a covered account for evidence of identity theft;  
 2. Contacting the patient;  
 3. Placing Billing Hold on account;  
 4. Reopening a covered account with a new account number;  
 5. Not opening a new covered account;  
 6. Closing an existing covered account;  
 7. Notifying law enforcement; or  
 8. Determining that no response is warranted under the particular circumstances. 
 

15



Page 3 of 3 

 D. Internal Notifications:  

 Any Northern Inyo HealthCare District employee who becomes aware of a potential 
 or actual breach of personal information should report it to their manager for follow-
 up. The Compliance Office should be notified of all breaches and resolutions.  
 
 E. External Notification:  
 The Compliance Office will work with the appropriate department(s) to determine if 
 any reports to outside agencies are required. 

 
IV.  UPDATING THE PROGRAM  

 Northern Inyo HealthCare District will evaluate and update policies and procedures 
 as necessary to reflect changes in risks to patients or to the organization from 
 identity theft.  
 
V.  PROGRAM OVERSIGHT  

 The Compliance Office shall report to the Board, at least annually, on Northern Inyo 
 HealthCare District’s compliance with the identity theft program. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Committee Approval   Date 

Fiscal Services Meeting 10/30/18 

            

            

 
Revised       
Reviewed       
Supercedes       
 

16



Page 1 of 1 

 
NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE 

DISTRICT 
POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

 

Title:  Small Balance Write Off Policy 

Scope:  Business Office Department:  Business Office 

Source:  Revenue Cycle Director Effective Date:  11/15/2018 

 
PURPOSE: 
 
Maximize efforts of the Revenue Cycle collection resources by minimizing activities with 
least cost effective return. 
 
 
POLICY: 
 
Any self-Pay patient account balance not totaling more than $4.99, will be written off 
and not be submitted to the patient, or the patient’s guarantor for payment.    
 
PROCEDURE:  
 
Within the HIS (Health Information System), parameters will be set to automatically adjust the 

self pay patient account balances of $4.99 or less, off to Small Balance Adjustment.   
 

“Self-Pay Patient Account Balance” is defined as the patient account balance owed 
following insurance adjudication, i.e., balance owed after any insurance payment(s).   
 
“Self-Pay Patient Account Balance” is defined as the patient account balance prior to 
any “Prompt Pay” Discounts.  Balance after applying discount will not be written off to 
small balance. 
 
“Submitted” is defined as mailing a patient statement indicating amount due/owed by 
the patient.    
 
“Submitted” is not defined as patient presenting with payment for any patient balance 
they become aware of by means of their insurance company which may be totally less 
than $4.99, such as explanation of benefits reflecting their out of pocket owed. 
Payment will be accepted from patients for self-pay balances of any amount. 
 
 

Committee Approval   Date 

Finance Leadership Meeting 10/30/2018 

  

  

 
Revised 10/19/2018 
Reviewed 10/19/2018 
Supercedes  
 

17



Page 1 of 3 

 
NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE 

DISTRICT 
POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

 

Title:  Credit Balance Refund Processing 

Scope:  Business Office Department:  Business Office 

Source: Revenue Cycle Director  Effective Date:  11/01/2018 

 
PURPOSE: 
To assure timely overpayment recognition and refund to the appropriate patient, party, 
intermediary, and or insurance company in accordance to the provisions of law. 
 
 
POLICY: 
Review credit balances to ascertain cause or activity creating credit balance.  Provide corrective 
action necessary to resolve credit and to provide accurate disbursement of refund.  If balance is 
recognized to be refund due to patient or other party, process and issue refund in a timely 
manner in accordance to the provisions of the law. 

 
PROCEDURE:  
Credit Balance report is analyzed weekly for processing refund requests. Each credit is verified 
for source of overpayment. The Business Office Coordinator responsible for the processing of all 
Patient and Insurance Company refunds. 
 
Each patient overpayment is verified to determine the party due the refund. Refund is cross-
checked to verify if patient or any guarantors related to the patient have any other open 
accounts where the credit may be applied to. When applicable credit balance transfers have 
been completed, a refund request is initiated for any remaining credit balance due to the 
patient.   
 
Credits as a result of duplicate payment are researched for posting errors or other open 
accounts for the patient and dispensed accordingly.   
 
Credits resulting from discounts taken prior to Insurance Company’s payment are recalculated 
accordingly. Any remaining credit due to patient is handled per policy. 
 
Insurance Company duplicate payments are researched for posting errors. If no posting errors, 
a refund request to the Insurance Company is created via the HIS, Refund Request Function 
with Accounts Payable processing the refund. Refunds are sent with an accompyaning letter 
providing explanation for the refund. 
 
Refund requests are submitted with a Credit Balance Review Disposition Form detailing the 
basis of the refund.  (see attached Credit Balance Review Disposition Form)  
 
Refunds are submitted to and approved by Business Office Coordinator.  Final review and 
approval is performed by Revenue Cycle Director. 
 
When two different Insurance Companies have paid on a claim resulting in the credit, the 
Explanation of Benefits are reviewed to determine the primary insurance. If it cannot be 
determined the correct coordination of benefits  for the patients insurance, the account will be 
forwarded to the Credit & Billing Information Office for follow up with the patient for 

18



Page 2 of 3 

Coordination of Benefits resolution. Until the Coordination of Benefits have been resolved, no 
refund will be issued. 
 
Credits resulting from a correction in charges require the request of a corrected claim. A 
corrected claim is submitted to the Insurance Company intiating an automated recoupment 
process which will be retracted via a Remittance Advice. In the event an insurance company 
does not recoup their overpayment, a refund will be issued to them. 
 
Refunds are issued in the form of a check, or a credit back to patient’s (individual who paid) 
original credit card.  If original credit card no longer exists, refund will be issued in form of a 
check. 
 
Medicare, Medi-Cal, and some Contracted Commercial Payors, do not accept refunds from 
providers.  Rather, the process for these payors is for them to perform a “recoupment” of the 
overpayment in a future Remittance Advice.  
 
Included in the Credit Balance Review is the analysis of trends or potential activity consistently 
occurring that results in credit balances.  Such process, includes action to mitigate or resolve 
such activity. 
 
During Credit Balance Review, CMS’s required “Medicare Credit Balance Report” is performed.  
This report is due at the end of each quarter and must be submitted to our Medicare 
Administrative Contractor by the end of the following month. Medicare Credit Balance Report is 
requested for each quarter. See Medicare Credit Balance Report Procedure. Medicare credit 
balances are managed and processed in same fashion as all credit balances, processing refunds 
per Medicare instruction. 
 
During Credit Balance Review, DHCS’s required  “Medi-Cal Credit Balance Report” is performed.  
This report is reported annually to DHCS upon request. See Medi-Cal Credit Balance Report 
Procedure.  Medi-Cal credit balances are managed and processed in same fashion as all credit 
balances, processing refunds per Medi-Cal instruction. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Committee Approval   Date 

Finance Managers Meeting 10/30/2018 

  

  

 
Revised 10/19/2018 
Reviewed 10/19/2018 
Supersedes  
 
 

19



Page 3 of 3 

CREDIT BALANCE REVIEW DISPOSITION 
 

Completed by:  _____________________________________    Date:  ____________ 
 
Account #:  ______________ DOS:   ______________   Patient Name:   ________________________ 
 
 
CREDIT BALANCE IS A RESULT OF FOLLOWING ACTIVITY:  (select reason) 
Review account, verify charge and payment activity. 
 Does charge exist? 
 What payments exist? 
 What contractual exist? 
 
No Charge was posted 

 Post the appropriate charge 

 If applicable, move balance to patient; send patient bill is applicable 

 If credit, proceed below as applicable  

  

Insurance over paid 
 Attach supporting EOB(s) 
 Charges: __________ 
 Ins Pmt:  __________ Insurance: _____________________ 
 Ins Pmt:  __________ Insurance: _____________________ 
 Credit:     __________   =  Refund* in amount of $ _________  Due to:  _____________________ 
 
*For Insurance refunds, attach applicable insurance refund letter 
 
Insurance contractual posting error 
 Attach supporting EOB(s) 
 Charges: __________ 
 Ins Pmt:  __________ Insurance:   _______________________ 
 Ins Pmt:  __________ Insurance:   _______________________ 
 Contrctl:  __________ 
 Contrctl:  __________ 
 Credit:     __________   = Reverse contractual amount of $ _________   
  
Patient over paid 
 Attach supporting detail 
 Charges: __________ 
 Pt Pmt:    __________ 
 Disc.:    __________ 
 Credit:     __________   =  Refund in amount of $ _________  Due to:  ______________________ 
 
Notes:  _______________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



1 

 

   

 

2013 CMS Validation Survey Monitoring-November 2018 
 

1. QAPI continues to receive and monitor data related to the previous CMS Validation Survey, including but not limited to, 

restraints, dietary process measures, case management, pain re-assessment, as follows: 

 

a. Advance Directives Monitoring.  

 

    

     
 
 

b. Positive Lab Cultures are being routed to Infection Prevention and each positive is being investigated as to source.  

Monitoring has been ongoing and reported through Infection Control Committee.  QAPI receives data.   

 

c. Safe Food cooling monitored for compliance with approved policy and procedure.  100% compliance since May 6, 

2013. 

 

d. Dietary hand washing logs have been reported and are at 100% compliance since May 6, 2013. 

 

 

e.    QAPI continues to monitor dietary referrals and the number of consults completed within 24 hours.  

 

 

35



2 

 

0.00%

20.00%

40.00%

60.00%

80.00%

100.00%

Dietary Consults Performed When 
Ordered

Compliance Rate GOAL

 
 

 

 

e. Care plans reviewed by Case Management and interventions made to produce care plans. Progress has been made in  

        developing individualized care plans. 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 October data not yet available 

36



3 

 

 

f. Fire drill date, times, attendance and outcomes, smoke detector tests, and fire extinguisher test grids have been 

approved.  All fire drills were complete and compliant from May 6, through present.  

 

 

g.  Pain Re-Assessment. NIH conducts pain re-assessment after administering pain medications and uses a 1-10 scale.  

 

 
 

 
 

    

 

37



4 

 

 
 

   

 

   Note: Due to small sample sizes in the ICU, results should be interpreted with caution for this unit. 

 

 

 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

38



5 

 

 

 

 

Table 6. Restraint chart monitoring for legal orders. 

 Mar 

2018 

April 

2018 

May 

2018 

June 

2018* 

July 

2018* 

Aug 

2018* 

Sept 

2018* 

Oct 

2018 

Goal 

Restraint verbal/written 

order obtained within 1 hour 

of restraints 

2/2 

(100%) 

 

1/1 

(100%) 

1/2 

(50%) 

    2/2 

(100%) 

100% 

Physician signed order 

within 24 hours 

2/2 

(100%) 

1/1 

(100%) 

1/2 

(50%) 

    1/2 

(50%) 

100% 

Physician Initial Order 

Completed (all areas 

completed and 

form/time/date noted/signed 

by MD and RN) 

1/2 
(50%) 

0/1 
(0%) 

1/2 
(50%) 

    1/2 
(50%) 

100% 

Physician Re-Order 

Completed (all areas 

completed and form 

time/date/noted/signed by 

MD and RN) 

3/6 

(50%) 

N/A N/A     N/A 100% 

Orders are for 24 hours 8/8 
(100%) 

1/1 
(100%) 

2/2 
(100%) 

    2/2 
(100%) 

100% 

Is this a PRN (as needed) 

Order 

0/8 

(0%) 

0/1 

(0%) 

0/2 

(0%) 

    0/2 

(0%) 

0% 

 

*Indicates no patients for this time frame 

 

 

39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors                 October 17, 2018 

Regular Meeting                     Page 1 of 3 

   

CALL TO ORDER The meeting was called to order at 5:36pm by Mary Mae Kilpatrick, Vice 

President. 

 

PRESENT 

 

Mary Mae Kilpatrick, Vice President   

Jean Turner, Secretary 

Robert Sharp, Treasurer 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ABSENT 

  

 

 

OPPORTUNITY FOR 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

 

 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN 

UPDATE, QUALITY 

AND PERFORMANCE 

COMMITTEE 

 

 

 

 

 

APPROVAL OF MOU 

WITH AFSCME 

(NURSE’S UNION) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RECEIPT OF ANNUAL 

AUDIT (TABLED) 

 

 

 

Kevin S. Flanigan MD, MBA, Chief Executive Officer 

Kelli Huntsinger, Chief Operating Officer 

John Tremble, Chief Financial Officer 

Tracy Aspel RN, Chief Nursing Officer 

Allison Robinson MD, Chief of Staff 

Sandy Blumberg, Executive Assistant 

  

M.C. Hubbard, President 

Peter Tracy, Member at Large 

Evelyn Campos Diaz, Chief Human Resources Officer 

 

Ms. Kilpatrick announced at this time person in the audience may speak 

on any items not on the agenda for this meeting on any matter within the 

jurisdiction of the District Board, and speakers will be limited to a 

maximum of three minutes each.  No comments were heard. 

 

Chief Executive Officer Kevin S. Flanigan MD, MBA introduced the 

Quality and Performance Improvement Committee, which provided a 

report on quality and performance improvement projects relating to the 

District’s Strategic Plan.  The group reported on metrics regarding staff 

education, infection control, and on efforts to establish a culture of safety 

at Northern Inyo Healthcare District (NIHD). The Committee’s report 

also included statistics on the flu vaccination rate among NIHD staff, and 

on safety improvements recently implemented within the District. 

 

Doctor Flanigan called attention to a proposed Memorandum of 

Understanding (MOU) between NIHD and the American Federation of 

State, County, and Municipal Employees (AFSCME) and to Board 

Resolution 18-05 relating to that agreement.  He provided an overview of 

significant differences between the proposed and the prior MOUs, and 

also commended both sides involved in the negotiation process on a job 

well done.  He additionally noted that the term of the new agreement will 

be one year.  It was moved by Jean Turner, seconded by Robert Sharp, 

and unanimously passed to approve the MOU between NIHD and 

AFSCME, and District Board Resolution 18-05 as presented. 

 

Doctor Flanigan reported that due to the fact that Wipfli LLP has yet to 

finalize the District’s audit report for the 2017/2018 fiscal year, that 

agenda item will be tabled to the November regular meeting of the 

District Board.  It was moved by Mr. Sharp, seconded by Ms. Turner, and 

unanimously passed to approve tabling approval of the NIHD Annual 

50



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors                 October 17, 2018 

Regular Meeting                     Page 2 of 3 

 

 

 

MAINTENANCE 

DEPARTMENT POLICY 

AND PROCEDURE 

APPROVALS 

 

 

 

 

 

DETERMINATION OF 

NOVEMBER AND 

DECEMBER 2018 

BOARD MEETING 

DATES 

 

 

QUARTERLY MEDICAL 

STAFF PILLARS OF 

EXCELLENCE 

 

 

COMBINE JANUARY 

2019 ACHD MEETING 

WITH BOARD 

EDUCATION 

 

 

 

POSSIBLE 

DEVELOPMENT OF 

POLICY REGARDING 

COMMUNICATIONS 

SENT TO MULTIPLE 

BOARD MEMBERS 

 

APPROVAL OF 

PHARMACY 

RELOCATION PROJECT 

AGREEMENT 

 

ATHENA 

IMPLEMENTATION 

UPDATE 

 

 

Audit for the 2017/2018 fiscal year to the November 2018 meeting of the 

District Board. 

 

Doctor Flanigan called attention to approval of the following District-

wide Maintenance Department Policies and Procedures: 

1. Fire Safety – Fire Hazards during Surgical Procedures 

2. Fire Safety – Compliance with NFPA 99-20121 Chapter 15 

3. Managing Risks – Library of EOC Information 

It was moved by Mr. Sharp, seconded by Ms. Turner, and unanimously 

passed to approve all three Maintenance Department Policies and 

Procedures as presented. 

 

Following brief discussion of the best dates for the November and 

December 2018 Board of Directors regular meetings, it was moved by 

Mr. Sharp, seconded by Ms. Turner, and unanimously passed to approve 

November 14, 2018 and December 19, 2018 to be the dates for the next 

two regular meetings of the District Board. 

 

Doctor Flanigan called attention to the quarterly Medical Staff Pillars of 

Excellence report for July through September 2018, which reflects a high 

level of performance regarding provider credentialing and privileging, and 

processing of Medical Staff applications. 

 

Doctor Flanigan requested the opinion of the Board of Directors regarding 

the possibility of combining the January 2019 Association of California 

Healthcare Districts (ACHD’s) leadership meeting with a Board education 

opportunity immediately following.  Following brief discussion it was 

determined that the Board is interested in pursuing that possibility further, 

and that potential dates for Board education will be discussed at the 

December regular meeting. 

 

Doctor Flanigan opened discussion on the possibly of developing a Board 

Policy regarding how to handle communications sent to multiple members 

of the District Board.  It was determined that this question will be posed 

to District Legal Counsel during the Board education session that will 

take place in January of 2019.  

 

Doctor Flanigan called attention to a proposed agreement with Pings and 

Associates architects (the successful candidate from a District RFP 

process) for the NIHD Pharmacy relocation project. It was moved by Mr. 

Sharp, seconded by Ms. Turner, and unanimously passed to approve the 

agreement with Pings and Associates architects as presented. 

 

Director of NIHD Information Technology Services Robin Cassidy 

provided an update on the District Health Information System 

implementation, which has gone as smoothly as possible thanks to 

extensive planning and teamwork on the part of NIHD staff. 

 

51



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors                 October 17, 2018 

Regular Meeting                     Page 3 of 3 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CHIEF OF STAFF 

REPORT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

BOARD MEMBER 

REPORTS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ADJOURNMENT TO 

CLOSED SESSION 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RETURN TO OPEN 

SESSION AND REPORT 

OF ACTION TAKEN 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

Ms. Kilpatrick called attention to the Consent Agenda for this meeting, 

which contained the following items: 

- Approval of minutes of the September 19, 2018 regular meeting 

- 2013 CMS Survey Validation Monitoring, October 2018 

- Financial and Statistical reports for August 2018 

- Policy and Procedure annual approvals 

It was moved by Ms. Turner, seconded by Mr. Sharp, and unanimously 

passed to approve all four Consent Agenda items with a correction being 

made to the minutes of the September 19 2018 regular meeting. 

 

Chief of Staff Allison Robinson MD reported following careful review, 

consideration, and approval by the appropriate Committees the Medical 

Executive Committee recommends approval of the Medical Staff 

resignation of David Huddleston MD, effective September 6, 2018.  It 

was moved by Ms. Turner, seconded by Mr. Sharp, and unanimously 

passed to approve the Medical Staff resignation of David Huddleston MD 

as requested. 

 

Ms. Kilpatrick asked if any members of the Board of Directors wished to 

comment on any items of interest.  Director Turner praised the District’s 

recent breast cancer wellness presentation, which she felt was very well 

done.  Director Kilpatrick also praised those involved in the NIHD and 

AFSCME MOU process on a job well done.  On behalf of Director 

Hubbard, Doctor Flanigan reported that the Eastern Sierra Cancer 

Alliance annual fundraising walk will take place this weekend.  No other 

comments were heard. 

 

At 6:51pm Ms. Kilpatrick announced the meeting would adjourn to 

Closed Session to allow the Board of Directors to: 

A. Confer with Legal Counsel regarding threatened litigation, 1 

matter pending (pursuant to Government Code Section 

54956.9(d)(2)). 

B. For discussion of a real estate negotiation regarding price, 376 

West Yaney Street, Bishop, California, agency negotiators Kevin 

S. Flanigan MD, MBA and the Ruland Trust (pursuant to 

Government Code Section 54956.8).  

 

At 7:08pm the meeting returned to open session. Ms. Kilpatrick reported 

that the Board took no reportable action. 

 

The meeting was adjourned at 7:11pm. 

  

                        _________________________________ 

Mary Mae Kilpatrick, Vice President 

 

       Attest: _________________________________ 

                              Jean Turner, Secretary 

52



 

 

 

TO:  NIHD Board of Directors 

FROM: Allison Robinson, MD, Chief of Medical Staff 

DATE:  November 6, 2018 

RE:  Medical Executive Committee Report 

 

The Medical Executive Committee met on this date. Following careful review and consideration, the 

Committee agreed to recommend the following to the NIHD Board of Directors: 

A. Policies/Procedures/Protocols/Order Sets (action items) 

1. Cardiac Monitoring 

2. Malignant Hyperthermia 

3. Pediatric and Newborn Consultation Requirements 

 

B. Medical Staff Appointments/Privileges (action item) 

1. Laura Sullivan, MD (cardiology, Renown) – telemedicine staff 

 

C. Allied Health Professional Appointments/Privileges (action items) 

1. Nancy Fong, FNP (Rural Health Clinic) 

2. Alissa Dell, FNP (Rural Health Clinic/Internal Medicine Clinic) 

D. Telemedicine Staff Appointment/Privileges – credentialing by proxy (action item) 

As per the approved Telemedicine Physician Credentialing and Privileging Agreement, and as 

outlined and allowed by 42CFR 482.22, the Medical Staff have chosen to recommend the 

following practitioners for Telemedicine privileges relying upon Quality Nighthawk’s 

credentialing and privileging decisions. 

1. Benjamin Ge, MD (diagnostic radiology, Quality Nighthawk)  

 

E. Additional privileges (action item) 

1. Erik Maki, MD (interventional radiology) – new privileges in Radiofrequency Ablation 

2. Tammy O’Neill, PA-C (Rural Health Clinic) – new privileges as a generalist Physician 

Assistant in the Rural Health Clinic  
 

F. Medical Staff Resignations (action items) 

1. Sheldon Kop, MD (radiology) – effective 10/30/2018 

2. David Landis, MD (radiology) – effective 10/30/2018 

3. Arsen Mkrtchyan, MD (internal medicine) – effective 12/31/2018 

 

G. Core Privilege Forms (action items) 

1. Pathology (new) 

2. Psychiatry (new) 

3. Pediatrics (revised) 

4. Obstetrics and Gynecology (revised) 

5. Family Medicine (revised) 

NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 

Northern Inyo Healthcare District 

150 Pioneer Lane, Bishop, California  93514 

          Medical Staff Office 

    (760) 873-2136     voice 

     (760) 873-2130     fax 

      

53



 NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 
POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Cardiac Monitoring* 
Scope: Acute Sub Acute Services, ICU Manual: Cardiovascular, Circulation (OXC), CPM - 

Respiratory, Oxygen 
Source: Manager - ICU Acute/Subacute Effective Date: 1/17/17 
 
PURPOSE:  

1. To ensure all patients who have orders for telemetry receive cardiac monitoring by trained staff within 
the constraints of the physician orders 

2. To standardize process for nursing management of the patient on the Acute Sub Acute unit caring for the 
telemetry patients, and for the nurse monitoring the patient in the Intensive Care Unit (ICU) 

3. To guide appropriate placement of patients requiring cardiac monitoring in the Acute Sub Acute 
Services Department 

4. To define required competency for registered nurses (RN) caring for patients on a cardiac monitor in the 
Acute Sub Acute Services Department and for the nurse monitoring the patient in the ICU 

5. To define parameters for and delineate response to clinical alarms related to cardiac monitoring in the 
Acute Sub Acute Services Department 

6. To ensure that accommodation and billing codes are accurate 

POLICY: 
1. A physician’s order is required to place a patient on a cardiac monitor  

a. Patients who present with or develop the following conditions while being admitted to the Acute 
Sub Acute department may be monitored on telemetry without being transferred to ICU: 

i. Syncope of unknown origin 
ii. Uncomplicated congestive heart failure (CHF) 

iii. Chest pain without diagnostic ECG findings or elevated biomarkers 
iv. Hemodynamically stable post-acute myocardial infarction (MI) 
v. Non-life threatening arrhythmias 

vi. Chronic, rate-controlled atrial fibrillation 
vii. Postoperative/post-procedure monitoring for patients at low risk for cardiac arrhythmias 

viii. Newly placed permanent pacemakers 
ix. Renal insufficiency 

 
b. Patients who present with or develop the following conditions require cardiac monitoring in the 

ICU: 
i. Hemodynamic compromise requiring vasoactive or antiarrhythmic medications 

ii. Unstable angina 
iii. ECG changes or life-threatening arrhythmias 
iv. Acute MI 
v. Atrial fibrillation requiring intravenous medications or procedures not approved for 

Acute Sub Acute Services 
vi. Unstable postoperative course 

vii. If it has been determined that the above patient no longer needs ICU interventions, they 
may be transferred to lower level of care with a physician’s order. 
 

 1 
54



 NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 
POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Cardiac Monitoring* 
Scope: Acute Sub Acute Services, ICU Manual: Cardiovascular, Circulation (OXC), CPM - 

Respiratory, Oxygen 
Source: Manager - ICU Acute/Subacute Effective Date: 1/17/17 
 

2. RNs caring for patients on a cardiac monitor, or nurses monitoring the patient in the ICU, will 
successfully pass a cardiac dysrhythmia test and demonstrate accurate dysrhythmia interpretation skills 
within 6 months of hire and every 2 years. 

3. Any patient on telemetry monitoring will be assigned to a registered nurse (RN) with a patient ratio of 
1:4 or fewer. 

4. The Acute Sub Acute RN will ensure that Standards of Care for the Telemetry patient are met: 
a. The Acute Sub Acute RN will assess the patient a minimum of once every shift and more 

frequently as ordered by the physician and if the patient’s condition changes. 
b. Vital signs will be measured and documented every 4 hours or as ordered by the physician. 
c. Patient weight will be measured and documented daily. 
d. Patent IV access will be maintained. 
e. Telemetry will be continuously monitored (except as ordered by physician) with 24-hour staffing 

of the central monitor by the central monitoring technicianan ICU RN/LVN. 
f. The Acute Sub Acute RN will initial co-sign the rhythm strip, verifying interpretation, with the 

central monitoring technician,the ICU RN/LVN a minimum of once per shift, and as needed for 
verification of alarms. 

g. The Acute Sub Acute RN will notify the physician for any acute changes in rate or rhythm. 

5. Cardiac monitor alarms will be on at all times, audible to and visible toby the central monitoring 
technician. the ICU RN/LVN 
 

6. The central monitoring technician ICU RN/LVN will immediately notify the Acute Sub Acute RN of 
any new alarms, rate changes, or rhythm changes via telephone.   
 

EQUIPMENT: 
1. See Lippincott procedure “Cardiac monitoring”  

 
PROCEDURE: 
A. Initial Setup 

 
1. Verify the physician’s order for telemetry monitoring 

 
2. Obtain equipment from ICU 

3. Follow procedure in Lippincott “Cardiac Monitoring” for Five-lead placement 

4. Electrodes must be changed at least every 48 hours. If one electrode becomes loose and needs to be 
changed, change all of the electrodes.  
 

5. Electrodes and lead-wires may be placed by CNA with verification by the Acute Sub Acute RN. 
 

 2 
55



 NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 
POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Cardiac Monitoring* 
Scope: Acute Sub Acute Services, ICU Manual: Cardiovascular, Circulation (OXC), CPM - 

Respiratory, Oxygen 
Source: Manager - ICU Acute/Subacute Effective Date: 1/17/17 
 
B. Monitoring: 

1. On admission or start of cardiac monitoring: 
a. When all the electrodes are in place, attach the lead-wires and check for a tracing on the 

telemetry monitor at the nurses’ station on the Acute Sub Acute department  
b. The RN will check with the central monitoring technicianthe ICU RN/LVN to ensure quality 

ECG tracing is being monitored.  
c. The department clerk will be made aware of the new order to ensure  change of service is 

documentedThe central monitoring technician will inform the registration department of the 
telemetry order, allowing them to enter the appropriate accommodation levelcoordinate changing 
the patient to the appropriate accommodation status. 

d. The Acute Sub Acute RN will notify the central monitoring technicianthe ICU RN/LVN 
telemetry monitor of the patient’s: 

i. Name 
ii. Room number 

iii. Diagnosis 
iv. Pertinent medications 
v. Pertinent labs 

vi. Pacemaker status 
e. The Acute Sub Acute RN will perform an initial head to toe admission assessment and additional 

assessments each shift, as stated in the standards of care.as listed below 
f. The central monitoring technicianICU RN/LVN will select one of the available telemetry 

windows.   
i. In the patient window, select “Admit Patient”.   

ii. Click on the “medical record number” window and scan the patient’s label.Input the 
medical record number   

iii. Ensure that all of the information entered is correct. 
 

2. Throughout monitoring: 
a. The Acute Sub Acute RN will perform a nursing assessment every four (4) hours, to include: 
b. Skin assessment to assure intact skin around electrodes 
c. Electrode and lead-wire placement 
d. Identification of new signs or symptoms of cardiac compromise 
e. Vital signs (may be delegated to CNA) 
f.a. The Acute Sub Acute  RN will  analyze, review, and initial  co-sign the printed rhythm strip once 

per shiftevery eight (8) hours along with the central monitoring technician the ICU RN/LVN. 
g.b. The central monitoring technician The ICU RN/LVN will analyze, review and initialco-

sign the rhythm strip every 8 hours and will review the patient’s rhythm every 4 hours. 
h.c. Temporary discontinuation of telemetry monitoring requires: 

i. Physician order stating patient may shower or bathe off telemetry 
ii. Physician order stating patient may be off telemetry for ordered tests and procedures. 

iii. Notification to the central monitoring technician the ICU RN/LVN when the patient is 
being taken off telemetry 

iv. Notification to the central monitoring technician the ICU RN/LVN when the patient is 
being returned to telemetry 

 3 
56



 NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 
POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Cardiac Monitoring* 
Scope: Acute Sub Acute Services, ICU Manual: Cardiovascular, Circulation (OXC), CPM - 

Respiratory, Oxygen 
Source: Manager - ICU Acute/Subacute Effective Date: 1/17/17 
 

i.d. If the patient needs to go to a test on telemetry, an Acute Sub Acute RN or cardiac arrhythmia 
qualified personnel will accompany the patient using the portable telemetry monitor 

j.e. The Acute Sub Acute RN will notify the central monitoring technician the ICU RN/LVN when 
the patient is being given medications that may affect the cardiac rate and rhythm 

k.f. Default alarm parameters will include: 
i. Heart rate lower than 50 

ii. Heart rate higher than 120 
iii. SVT defined as greater than 180 beats per minute for greater than 5 beats 
iv. Run of PVCs defined as greater than 2 PVCs in a row 
v. Ventricular rhythm defined as greater than 14 PVCs in a run 

vi. Ventricular tachycardia defined as greater than 100 bpm with greater than 5 PVCs in a 
run 

vii. Greater than 10 PVCs in one minute 
viii. Atrial fibrillation 

ix. Pause defined as 2 seconds without electrical activity 
x. Asystole defined as greater than 4 seconds without electrical activity 

l.g. Alarm parameters may be modified at the ICU central monitor as ordered by the physician, 
depending on baseline rate and rhythm in order to avoid alarm fatigue. An example would be a 
patient with a hear rate greater than 120 that the physician allows the alarm limits to be set higher 
than 120. 

m.h. The Acute Sub Acute S RN will notify the physician of any acute changes in rate or 
rhythm. 

 
3. On discharge or upon discontinuation of cardiac monitoring: 

a. An Acute Sub Acute RN, CNA, or department clerk will notify the central monitoring technician 
the ICU RN/LVN of discontinuation.  

b. An Acute Sub Acute RN, CNA, or department clerk will return telemetry unit to ICU for 
cleaning and storage. 

c. An Acute Sub Acute RNUpon discontinuation of cardiac monitoring, the central monitoring 
technician  will notify the registration departmentdepartment clerk to assure the appropriate 
documentation of of  change of service takes place.coordinate changing the accommodation 
status of the patient.  
 

C. Documentation 
1. On admission or start of telemetry monitoring: 

a. If telemetry is started after the patient is already admitted, the central monitoring technician The 
department clerk will assure that, at the time of the physician’s order, the registration department 
is informed of  change of service. to “Med/Surg Intermediate” will be completed there is a 
physician’s ordre and that the accommodation status of the patient is accurate.  

b. Acute Sub Acute RN will enter time of “Telemetry Start” in the EHR 
c. Acute Sub Acute RN will enter “Unit Telemetry Initiated” in the EHR 
d. Acute Sub Acute RN will document rate, rhythm, lead used with verification by the central 

monitoring technician the ICU RN/LVN, in the EHR 
e. Acute Sub Acute RN will document initial placement of electrodes in the EHR 

 4 
57



 NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 
POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Cardiac Monitoring* 
Scope: Acute Sub Acute Services, ICU Manual: Cardiovascular, Circulation (OXC), CPM - 

Respiratory, Oxygen 
Source: Manager - ICU Acute/Subacute Effective Date: 1/17/17 
 

f. Acute Sub Acute RN will open care plan “Alteration in Cardiac Output” 
 

2. Throughout monitoring: 
a. Acute Sub Acute RN will document above assessment in EHR every 4 hoursshift. 
b. InitialedCo-signed rhythm strips will remain in ICU for 24 hours, then will be placed in patient’s 

paper chart located in AS  Services department 
c. Acute Sub Acute RN will document any acute changes, including time notified by the central 

monitoring technicianICU RN/LVN, and time of notification of physician in EHR 
d. Acute Sub Acute RN will document any response to PRN medications in the EHR EMAR 
e. Acute Sub Acute RN will verify once per shift that admission information was documented in 

EHR 
f. Acute Sub Acute RN will ensure electrodes are changed at least every 48 hours, and documented 

in EHR. Electrode changes may be delegated to CNA, with confirmation of placement and 
documentation by RN. 

g. Acute Sub Acute RN will review care plan each shift and document progress towards goals. 
 

3. On discharge or at the end of telemetry monitoring: 
a. The central monitoring technician The department clerk will ensure that the change in service 

will be processed with the time of the physicians written order 
b. Acute Sub Acute RN will enter time of “Telemetry Stop” in EHR 
c. Acute Sub Acute RN will complete Alteration in Cardiac Output care plan.  

 
REFERENCES: 

1. California Department of Public Health. (2007). Changes to the minimum licensed nurse-to-patient 
ratios effective January 1, 2008. Retrieved from 
http://www.cdph.ca.gov/certlic/facilities/Documents/LNC-AFL-07-26.pdf 
 

CROSS REFERENCE P&P: 
1. Cardiac monitoring. (July 10, 2015). Lippincott Procedures. Retrieved on April 14, 2016 from     

http://procedures.lww.com/lnp/view.do?pId=3260727 
 
Approval Date 
CCOC 8/27/18 
MED/ICU 10/25/18 
MEC 11/6/18 
Board  
Last Board of Director review 4/18/18 
Developed: 4/10/16 
Reviewed: 1/17 la 
Revised: 8/23 JN 
Supersedes:  

1. Transfer to Medical-Surgical Intermediate Care/Telemetry  

 5 
58

http://www.cdph.ca.gov/certlic/facilities/Documents/LNC-AFL-07-26.pdf
http://procedures.lww.com/lnp/view.do?pId=3260727


 NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 
POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Cardiac Monitoring* 
Scope: Acute Sub Acute Services, ICU Manual: Cardiovascular, Circulation (OXC), CPM - 

Respiratory, Oxygen 
Source: Manager - ICU Acute/Subacute Effective Date: 1/17/17 
 

2. Telemetry Monitoring – Philips. 
3. Med/Surg unit standards of care for  patients on telemetry 

 
 
Index Listings: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 6 
59



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 
POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Malignant Hyperthermia* 
Scope: Nursing Services Manual:  Cardiovascular, Circulation (OXC), CPM - 

Respiratory, Oxygen 
Source: Perioperative Director of Nursing Effective Date: 5/24/16  
 
PURPOSE: 
To provide quick detection and intervention in the rare instance of malignant hyperthermia (MH). 
 
POLICY: 
The following procedure will be used as a guideline in the instance that a patient experiences a malignant 
hyperthermic crisis.  
 
EQUIPMENT: 

• MH emergency Cart  
• Refrigerated IV Normal Saline (in cart) 
• Ice (large quantity) 
• Regular insulin 
• Defibrillator cart 

 
PRECAUTIONS: 

Malignant hyperthermia is a life-threatening syndrome that occurs in individuals who have a 
hereditary skeletal muscle disorder.  In these people, a triggering anesthetic agent may cause an 
acute hypermetabolic crisis which may occur during anesthesia induction (ie. immediately upon 
exposure to a triggering anesthetic agent) or anytime throughout the intraoperative or 
postoperative phase.  Perioperative nurses and anesthesia personnel need to be alert to the signs 
and symptoms of malignant hyperthermia (MH), a medical emergency that must be detected 
early and treated immediately and vigorously. 
 

PROCEDURE: 
1) Prior to surgical interventions all patients will be assessed for risk factors associated with 

malignant hyperthermic susceptibility. 
a. Family history of MH, complications or death arising from anesthesia. 
b. History of hereditary skeletal muscle disorder, unusual muscle weakness or muscle 

cramps. 
c. Dark, cola-colored urine or unexplained high fevers following anesthesia. 
d. Muscle hypertrophy exhibited by round or bulky muscle groups. 
e. Higher incidence in children. 
f. Personal history of unexplained high fever following surgery. 

2) Health care team members will monitor the patient and observe for signs and symptoms of MH.  
Signs and symptoms to report to the anesthesiologist immediately include: 

 
a. Increase in end-tidal carbon dioxide (the earliest sign of MH) 
b. Muscle rigidity, including masseter spasm which may be one of the earliest signs of a 

MH crisis.  (The masseter muscle raises and lowers the jaw). 
c. Tachycardia (up to 200 bpm) and/or dysrhythmias. 
d. Tachypnea. 
e. Unstable or rising (initially) systolic B/P. 
f. Oxygen desaturation/cyanosis. 
g. Mottling of the skin. 

60



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 
POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Malignant Hyperthermia* 
Scope: Nursing Services Manual:  Cardiovascular, Circulation (OXC), CPM - 

Respiratory, Oxygen 
Source: Perioperative Director of Nursing Effective Date: 5/24/16  
 

h. Fever (i.e. temperature increases of as much as 2 degrees C. (3.6f) every five minutes 
with possible temperatures of 43.3 degrees C. (110f) or more. 

i. Palpable warmth in viscera, anesthesia tubing, soda lime canisters (with soda lime 
possible turning blue). 

j. Diaphoresis. 
k. Dark blood in surgical field. 
l. Do not give triggering agents to patients with Ducheene Dystrophy, Central core Disease, 

Mytonia or other forms of Muscular Dystrophy. 
 

INTERVENTION: 
1. At onset of crisis, RN will initiate code blue system.  (MH Hotline # is 1-800-644-9737). 
2. Assist anesthesiologist intubate and/or secure airway.  As soon as possible, anesthesia circuit 

and soda lime units need to be changed. 
3. Obtain MH cart and defibrillator cart. 
4. Discontinue triggering agents (i.e. volatile inhalational anesthetic agents, depolarizing 

neuromuscular blocking agents). 
5. If the patient is stable and the surgical procedure is to continue, employ a non-triggering, 

anesthetic technique. 
6. Hyperventilate the patient with 100% oxygen at high flow rates 10 L/min. or more. 
7. Under the direction of the anesthesiologist administer Dantrolene IV.  Initial dose is 2.5/kg 

Rapid IV, repeat until there is control of the signs of MH. Sometimes more than 10mg/kg (up 
to 30mg/kg) is necessary. 

 
Supplies needed: 

1) 60ml syringes, Mini Spike Dispensing Pins, IV bags of sterile water for drug dilution, and Clave 
Multiple IV Access (all located in MH Cart). 

2) Each vial contains 20mg of Dantrolene and needs to be reconstituted with 60cc of sterile water 
for injection (preservative free).  Vial needs to be shaken until solutions are clear.  

a) First nurse will Insert Mini Spike into Dantrolene bottles. 
b) Second nurse will attach Clave Multiple IV Access to Sterile Water for IV and then 

attach 60ml syringe, drawing up solution and handing to first nurse with Dantrolene. 
c) First nurse will then instill the sterile water into the Dantrolene bottle and shake up until 

dissolved. 
d) After diluted, the Dantrolene is to be administered to the patient per physician order. 
e) This routine is to be repeated until desired amount of Dantrolene has been diluted and 

injected into patient. 
f) If additional nursing personnel are available this process could be expedited 

3) For Dantrolene dose conversion refer to Malignant Hyperthermia Emergency Dantrolene 
Dosage Chart. (located on top of Malignant Hyperthermia Cart and in front of the Information 
Book. 

4) Notify Pharmacy if more Dantrolene is needed. 
 

*Note: Dantrolene is a skeletal muscle relaxant that inhibits the release of calcium from the 
sarcoplasmic reticulum.  (CARE MUST BE TAKEN TO PREVENT DANTROLENE FROM 
INFILTRATING TISSUE AROUND THE IV SITE). 

61



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 
POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Malignant Hyperthermia* 
Scope: Nursing Services Manual:  Cardiovascular, Circulation (OXC), CPM - 

Respiratory, Oxygen 
Source: Perioperative Director of Nursing Effective Date: 5/24/16  
 
 

8. Initiate cooling:  For patients > 39 degrees C. Circulating nurse must direct members of the 
team who are unfamiliar with the OR.  
a) Iced normal saline IV's and normal saline for irrigation in the refrigerator.  *DO NOT 

USE LACTATED RINGERS - may contribute to acidosis). 
b) Ice patient - crushed ice in plastic bags lay next to the patient’s neck, axilla and groin 

areas. ** Can use Ice Packs in freezer until ice arrives 
c) Gastric or peritoneal lavage. 
d) Cooling blanket. 
e) Indirectly lavage stomach (i.e. connect NG tube to refrigerated normal saline irrigation 

with cystoscopy tubing).  
f) Lavage rectum (i.e. connect a three-way foley catheter with 30cc balloon to refrigerated 

normal saline irrigation with cystoscopy tubing.  *NOTE:  BLADDER IRRIGATION 
IS TO BE AVOIDED BECAUSE OF THE NEED TO MONITOR URINE 
OUTPUT). 

 
    Discontinue cooling measures when the patient's temperature reaches < 38 degrees C.  
    and falling to prevent drift <36 degrees C. 
    (100.4f).   
     Note: Care should be taken to avoid too rigorous cooling, which can result in  
     inadvertent hypothermia. 
 

9. The RN will call the lab and respiratory therapy to obtain necessary lab work including, 
blood gases to obtain ph status. 

 
10. The RN will be familiar with other medications that may be administered under the direction 

of the anesthesiologist. 
a) IV sodium bicarbonate (HCO3) 1-2 meq/kg (after the first ABG's are drawn). 
b) Treat hyperkalemia in adults with 10 units regular insulin in 50% dextrose 50ml IV 

bolus. Pediatric patients may be treated with regular insulin 0.15 units/kg and 1mg/kg 
50% glucose. Life threatening hyperkalemia in both adult and pediatric   patients may be 
treated with Calcium chloride 10mg/kg or Calcium gluconate 10-50mg/kg. 

c) Dysrhythmias usually respond to treatment of acidosis and hyperkalemia. Use standard 
drug therapy except calcium channel blockers which may cause hyperkalemia or 
cardiac arrest in the presence of Dantrolene sodium. 

  
 

d) Maintain a high urine output of at least 2cc/kg/hr by giving the following: 
• A foley catheter will be inserted if not already present. 
• IV normal saline per physician order (2-8 ml/kg) body weight for initial volume 

loading with subsequent amounts based on CVP readings and urine output. 
• May consider furosemide. 

 
11. Transfer the stable patient to PACU/ICU in the following manner: 

62



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 
POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Malignant Hyperthermia* 
Scope: Nursing Services Manual:  Cardiovascular, Circulation (OXC), CPM - 

Respiratory, Oxygen 
Source: Perioperative Director of Nursing Effective Date: 5/24/16  
 
 

a) Give advanced notice so nursing staff can prepare to receive a post-crisis MH patient. 
b) Transport/transfer patent to a bed with a hypothermia blanket. 
c) Vital signs, EKG, arterial line, oximetry, and B/P shall be monitored. 
d) Continuous oxygen administration shall be given during transport. 
e) Dantrolene 1mg/kg should be given every 4-6 hours for at least 36 hours. Further doses 

may be indicated. 
f) MH cart shall be kept at the patient bedside if needed. 
 

12. Observe the patient in an ICU for at least the first 24 hours, due to the risk of recrudescence. 
For the first 24-48 hours following surgery, each caregiver who is new to the patient shall be 
given a comprehensive report to include a review of the signs and symptoms and history of 
M.H.  All personnel in the unit should be advised of the patient's diagnosis.  

 
13. Monitor all parameters (ie. ECG, V.S., CVP if present, oximetry, ABG, CK, K+ (potassium 

levels) every 6 hours for 24-48 hrs following surgery because triggering of MH may occur.  
Major indications of renewed trouble are: 

 
• Rigidity 
• Acidosis 
• Change in vital signs 
• Any of the signs and symptoms associated with the initial acute episode, 

Including monitoring the patient’s coagulation status watching for DIC and   
Myoglobinuria 

 
14. Continue Dantrolene 1mg/kg body weight IV every 4- 6 hours for hours following surgery 

titrated to tachycardia, acidosis, elevated body temperature and muscle rigidity to prevent 
post-crisis recurrence in the patient. 

 
15. Avoid using potassium-containing solutions.  Allow electrolytes to normalize.  For as long as 

24 hrs post-crisis, muscle breakdown is occurring and spontaneously releasing intracellular 
potassium, making serum potassium assessment difficult. 

 
16. Give a narcotic analgesic to treat severe muscle tenderness that occurs following a MH 

episode.  Observe the patient for signs and symptoms of compartment syndrome.  NOTE:  
Great care is required in handling patients because of extreme muscle tenderness that results 
from an MH episode. 

 
17. Avoid stress and anxiety.  If the patient's condition warrants, allow family members to 

provide comfort and reassurance. 
 
18. Caution should be exercised during patient ambulation because of the muscle damage caused 

by MH crisis and muscle relaxation resulting from the administration of Dantrolene.  Patient 
should ambulate initially only with assistance. 

63



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 
POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Malignant Hyperthermia* 
Scope: Nursing Services Manual:  Cardiovascular, Circulation (OXC), CPM - 

Respiratory, Oxygen 
Source: Perioperative Director of Nursing Effective Date: 5/24/16  
 
 
FAMILY PATIENT TEACHING: 
 

1. If a patient has an equivocal MH episode or is a first-degree blood relative of a newly 
diagnosed MH patient, and therefore requires diagnosis, he or she may be referred to a 
regional medical testing center for a skeletal muscle biopsy.  Currently, a skeletal muscle 
biopsy is the only definitive diagnostic test for MH and is available only at specific center. 
Forms for reporting MH episodes are available from: North American MH Registry of   
MHAUS c/o The Department of Anesthesiology, Children’s Hospital of Pittsburgh, Room 
7449, 3705 Fifth Avenue at De Soto Street, Pittsburgh, Pa 15213-2583 – Phone 412-692-
5464. 

 
2. Instruct the patient and family members on the signs and symptoms of MH as soon as 

possible following the crisis. Help them understand the importance of reporting these signs 
and symptoms immediately to an emergency care facility. 

 
3. Advise the patient and family members of possible post-Dantrolene therapy symptoms.  

These may include nausea, diarrhea, muscle weakness (ie, decrease in hand grip; weakness of 
leg muscles, especially when walking down stairs), double vision, and dizziness or 
lightheadedness. The patient should be kept in Hospital for 48 hours after Dantrolene, and 
because these symptoms may persist for up to 48 hours, the patient should be instructed not 
to operate a vehicle or engage in other hazardous activity during this time. 

 
4. Discuss with the patient and family members the potential for malignant hyperthermia 

susceptibility (MHS) in other blood relatives.  These family members should be notified in 
writing that they are to be considered MHS until proven otherwise. 

 
5. Instruct the patient and family members in writing to inform all of their health care providers 

of their known or suspected MH susceptibility.  They should notify the following in writing: 
local hospitals and anesthesia departments, family doctors, dentists, and school nurses. The 
patient should ask the anesthesia departments of his or her local hospitals to take 
precautionary steps to make sure an adequate supply of fresh Dantrolene is available. 

 
6. Inform the patient of the need to discuss with anesthesia personnel his or her MHS as soon as 

any further surgery is contemplated.  Let the patient know that when anesthesia personnel are 
prepared, a patient's risk associated with anesthesia is markedly decreased. 

 
7. Instruct the patient and family members on the importance of wearing a medical 

identification bracelet and carrying a card in the wallet regarding the history of MH. 
 

8. Give the patient and family members the MH Association of the United States' address:  39 
East State Street,  PO Box 1069, Sherburne, NY 13460-10669,  (607)674-7910 –  E-mail: 
mhaus2norwich.net / www.mhaus.org   

 

64



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 
POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Malignant Hyperthermia* 
Scope: Nursing Services Manual:  Cardiovascular, Circulation (OXC), CPM - 

Respiratory, Oxygen 
Source: Perioperative Director of Nursing Effective Date: 5/24/16  
 

9.  Follow up phone call to assess whether patient/family has followed up contacting the MH 
Association. 

 
Triggering agents commonly used at NIH: 

• Sevoflurane (Ultane) 
• Isoflurane (forane) 
• Halothane (fluothane) 
• Succinylcholine (anectine) 
• Desflurane 

 
Non-triggering anesthetic agents that can be used as an alternative: 
 
 Neuromuscular blocking agents: 

• Atracurium (tracrium) 
• Pancuronium (pavulon) 
• Vecuronioum (norcuron) 
• Pipecuronium (ardvan) 
• Mivacurium (mivacron) 
• Tubocurare (curare) 
• Cisatracurium 

 
 IV anesthetic agents: 

• Propofol (diprivan) 
• Etomidate (amidate) 
• Ketamine (ketalar) 
• Thiopental 

 
 Inhalation agents: 

• Nitrous oxide 
 
 
 
 Benzodiazepines: 

• Diazepam (valium) 
• Midazolam (versed) 
• Lorazepam (ativan) 

 
 Opiates: 

• Morphine 
• Meperidine (demerol) 
• Hydromorphine (dilaudid) 
• Fentanyl (sublimaze) 
• Sufentanil (sufenta) 

65



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 
POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Malignant Hyperthermia* 
Scope: Nursing Services Manual:  Cardiovascular, Circulation (OXC), CPM - 

Respiratory, Oxygen 
Source: Perioperative Director of Nursing Effective Date: 5/24/16  
 

• Alfentanil (alfenta) 
 
 Barbiturates: 

• Thiopental (pentothal) 
• Methohexital (brevital) 
 

 Local anesthetics: 
• Lidocaine (xylocaine) 
• Bupivicaine (marcaine) 
• Mepivacaine (carbocaine) 
• Cocaine 
• Tetracaine (pontocaine) 
• Procaine (novacaine) 
• Chloraprocaine (nesacaine) 
• Ropivicaine (Naropin) 

 
Note:  Controversial drugs include Atropine and Neostigmine on their safety. 
 
 Supplies in MH Cart:  (Kept in PACU) 
 **Supply list for cart is located under attachments on left grey sidebar 
 **Supplies need to be restocked immediately after code 
 

• Calcium Chloride 10% 10 ml PFS 
• Dextrose 50 % 50ml PFS 
• Furosemide 40 meq/4ml Vial 
• Mannitol 20% 500ml bag 
• Sodium Bicarbonate 50 meq/50ml PFS 
• Dantrolene 20 mg (6 boxes of 6 bottles) 
• Lidocaine 1% (50mg/5ml) PFS (3) 
• Lidocaine 2% (100mg/5ml) PFS (1) 
• Amiodarone 150mg/3ml (3) 
• Secondary IV Set #11953-48 
• Sterile Water for Injection 1000ml bag x 4 
• Clave Multiple IV Access #12114 x 4 (attach to sterile water for injection above) 
• Mini Spike Dispensing Pin DP-1000   x 25 
• 60ml Luer Lock Syringes x 20 
• Blood Gas Kits x 4 
• Esophageal Stethoscopes   
• Salem Sump Tube Size 14fr, 18 French. 
• Urine Meter 
• 3M Wall Drape 
• Toomey syringe  
• 60ml Irrigating Syringe 

66



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 
POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Malignant Hyperthermia* 
Scope: Nursing Services Manual:  Cardiovascular, Circulation (OXC), CPM - 

Respiratory, Oxygen 
Source: Perioperative Director of Nursing Effective Date: 5/24/16  
 

• Irrigation Set #750307 
• Soda Lime (1 new machine – 2 old machine) 
• Anesthesia circuit 
• Blood draw tubes (bags x 3) 
• Zip lock bags for Ice 
• Foley Catheters (#10, #16, #18) 
• Rectal Tube 
 

  Refrigerator on Cart: 
  

• Novolin R Insulin 100units/ml   10 ml 
• TB Syringes x 2 
• Normal Saline IV 1000ml Bag x 4 
• Normal Saline Irrigation 1000ml x 4 
• Ice Packs in freezer compartment x 6 

 
DOCUMENTATION: 

The incident shall be documented on the Operating Room Record, Anesthesia record and on an 
incident report describing fully the presenting signs and symptoms, treatment and patient 
response.  Names of all attending personnel will be included on the operating room record.  If 
personnel and time permit, a code sheet shall be filled out in entirety. 
**Malignant Hyperthermia Crisis Flow Sheet is located under attachments in left grey 
sidebar. 

 
REFERENCE:   
MHAUS literature on Malignant Hyperthermia  
Berry and Kohns Operating Room Technique  
AORN, Pharmacy, PDR 
 
CROSS REFERENCE P&P: 
Malignant Hyperthermia Cart Check 

 
Approval Date 
CCOC 10/22/18 
Pharmacy & Therapeutics  10/18/18 
Surgery Tissue 10/24/18 
MEC 11/6/18 
Board of Directors  
Last Board of Directors Review 1/17/18 
 
 

Developed: 4/29/13 
Reviewed:  

67



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 
POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Malignant Hyperthermia* 
Scope: Nursing Services Manual:  Cardiovascular, Circulation (OXC), CPM - 

Respiratory, Oxygen 
Source: Perioperative Director of Nursing Effective Date: 5/24/16  
 
Revised:  02/11 BS; 8/2011 BS/TS, 4/25/2013, 2/26/15AW, 10/18ta 
Index Listings:  Malignant Hyperthermia 
 

68



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 
POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Pediatric and Newborn Consultation Requirements 
Scope: Medical Staff, Pediatrics Manual: Medical Staff 
Source: Chief of Pediatrics Effective Date: 
 
PURPOSE:  
The purpose of this policy is to outline the requirements for pediatric and newborn patient consultation 
to the pediatric service.   
 
POLICY: 

1. Consultation on pediatric patients is required in the following circumstances: 
a. Any critically ill infant or child. 
b. Prior to surgery in any child with potential for significant complications. 
c. Following surgery for unexpectedly prolonged inpatient stay or prolonged IV therapy or 

electrolyte imbalance. 
d. At any time a provider has concerns. 

2. Consultation on newborns/nursery patients is required in the following circumstances: 
a. Any newborn admitted to Neonatal Pediatrics for any reason (IV therapy, oxygen 

therapy, etc.). 
b. Any infant requiring transfer to another facility. 
c. Infants requiring phototherapy. 
d. Infants requiring treatment for hypoglycemia. 
e. Infants with unstable vital signs or suspected sepsis. 
f. Infant with persistent vomiting or abdominal distension. 
g. Infants born before 35 weeks gestation. 
h. Infant of mother with signs/symptoms concerning for chorioamnionitis. 
i. At any time a provider has concerns. 

3. The request for consultation should be directed to the physician listed as being on-call for the 
pediatric service and/or a pediatric or neonatal specialist if higher level of care is needed.  
Medical staff members on-call for the pediatric service may be a pediatrician or a family practice 
physician having qualified for and been granted the appropriate privileges to provide 
consultation. 

 
REFERENCES: 

1. 22 CCR §70537. Pediatric Service General Requirements. 
2. American Academy of Pediatrics. 

 
CROSS REFERENCE P&P: 

1. Pediatric Standards of Care and Routines 
2. Admission Procedure of Pediatric Patient 
3. Admission, Care, Discharge, and Transfer of the Newborn 

 
Approval Date 
Clinical Consistency Oversight Committee  
Perinatal/Pediatrics Committee 10/12/18 
Medical Executive Committee  11/06/18 
Board  of Directors  
Last Board of Directors Review  

Page 1 of 2 
69



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 
POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Pediatric and Newborn Consultation Requirements 
Scope: Medical Staff, Pediatrics Manual: Medical Staff 
Source: Chief of Pediatrics Effective Date: 
 
Developed: 10/2018 ch, dp 
Reviewed: 
Revised: 
Supersedes: n/a 
Index Listings: pediatric newborn consultations, pediatric newborn consults 
 
 

Page 2 of 2 
70



 
Northern Inyo Hospital Medical Staff 

Clinical Privilege Request Form 
 
 

     Practitioner Name: ________________________________________________________     Date: _________________ 
Please Print 

Appointment cycle ________________ 
(Office use only) 

 
PATHOLOGY 

 
Instructions: Please check box next to each core privilege/special privilege requested.   

 

INITIAL CRITERIA 
Education/Formal Training:  
• Completed accredited residency training in Anatomic Pathology and Clinical Pathology. 
• Board Certified/Board Eligible by the American Board of Pathology or recognized equivalent (AOA or foreign). 

CORE PRIVILEGES 
 

 
 

Anatomic and Clinical Pathology, including provision of consultation to physicians for diagnosis, 
exclusion, and monitoring of disease, as well as the ordering of diagnostic studies.   

 Supervise clinical laboratory (blood bank, microbiology, hematology, urinalysis, clinical chemistry) 
 Perform and interpret bone marrow examinations 
 Autopsies 
 Blood banking/transfusion medicine 
 Chemical pathology 
 Cytogenetics 
 Cytopathology, including fine needle aspiration or biopsy 
 Dermatopathology 
 Forensic pathology 
 Frozen section 
 Hematopathology/laboratory hematology 
 Immunopathology 
 Microbiology/virology 
 Neuropathology 
 Pediatric pathology 
 Surgical pathology 
 Toxicology 

 
 

SPECIAL PRIVILEGES 
(require additional training and/or experience within last two years) 

 Invasive biopsy (needle or surgical) 
 

 
 
Acknowledgment of Practitioner: 
I have requested only those privileges for which by education, training, health status, current experience and 
demonstrated performance I am qualified to perform and for which I wish to exercise and I understand that: 
 
(a) In exercising any clinical privileges granted, I am constrained by any Medical Staff Bylaws, Rules and 

Regulations, and policies and procedures applicable. 
(b) Any restriction on the clinical privileges granted to me is waived in an emergency situation and in such 

situation my actions are governed by the applicable section of the Medical Staff Bylaws or related documents. 
 
 
 
 
______________________________________________________________________          __________________ 
Practitioner Signature                         Date 

 

Pathology  1 
Rev.9/14/18 

71



 
Northern Inyo Hospital Medical Staff 

Clinical Privilege Request Form 
 
 

     Practitioner Name: ________________________________________________________     Date: _________________ 
Please Print 

Appointment cycle ________________ 
(Office use only) 

 
 

APPROVALS 
 
COMMENTS/MODIFICATIONS TO REQUESTED PRIVILEGES: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________________________________          __________________ 
Chief of Surgery                    Date 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Approvals Committee Date 
Credentials Committee  
Medical Executive Committee  
Board of Directors  

 
(Office use only) 

 

Pathology  2 
Rev.9/14/18 

72



 
Northern Inyo Hospital Medical Staff 

Clinical Privilege Request Form 
 
 

     Practitioner Name: ________________________________________________________     Date: _________________ 
Please Print 

Appointment cycle ________________ 
(Office use only) 

 
PSYCHIATRY 

 
Instructions: Please check box next to each core privilege requested. 

 

INITIAL CRITERIA 
Education/Formal Training:  
• Completed accredited residency training in Psychiatry. 
• Board Certified/Board Eligible by the American Board of Psychiatry and Neurology or recognized equivalent (AOA or 

foreign). 
CORE PRIVILEGES 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Evaluate, diagnose, treat, perform H&P, and provide consultation to adult patients presenting with 
mental, behavioral, addictive or emotional disorders (e.g., psychoses, depression, anxiety disorders, 
substance abuse disorders, developmental disabilities, sexual dysfunctions and adjustment disorders) at 
the request of the patient’s attending practitioner privileged at Northern Inyo Healthcare District. 

 
 
 

Provide consultation to healthcare providers at Northern Inyo Healthcare District in fields regarding 
mental, behavioral, or emotional disorders, as well as order diagnostic laboratory tests and prescribe 
medications. 

 
 

Provide emergency psychiatry to patients of all ages; assess, stabilize, and determine disposition of 
patients with emergent conditions 

 
 

SPECIAL PRIVILEGES 
(requires proof of training in pediatric psychiatry) 

 
 
 
 

Evaluate, diagnose, treat, perform H&P, and provide consultation to pediatric patients presenting with 
mental, behavioral, addictive or emotional disorders (e.g., psychoses, depression, anxiety disorders, 
substance abuse disorders, developmental disabilities, sexual dysfunctions and adjustment disorders) at 
the request of the patient’s attending practitioner privileged at Northern Inyo Healthcare District. 

 

 
Acknowledgment of Practitioner: 
I have requested only those privileges for which by education, training, health status, current experience 
and demonstrated performance I am qualified to perform and for which I wish to exercise and I 
understand that: 
 
(a) In exercising any clinical privileges granted, I am constrained by any Medical Staff Bylaws, Rules 

and Regulations, and policies and procedures applicable. 
(b) Any restriction on the clinical privileges granted to me is waived in an emergency situation and in 

such situation my actions are governed by the applicable section of the Medical Staff Bylaws or 
related documents. 

 
 
 
______________________________________________________________________          __________________ 
Practitioner Signature                         Date 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Psychiatry  1 
Rev.11/6/18 

73



 
Northern Inyo Hospital Medical Staff 

Clinical Privilege Request Form 
 
 

     Practitioner Name: ________________________________________________________     Date: _________________ 
Please Print 

Appointment cycle ________________ 
(Office use only) 

 
 
 

APPROVALS 
 
COMMENTS/MODIFICATIONS TO REQUESTED PRIVILEGES: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________________________________          __________________ 
Chief of Medicine                    Date 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________________________________          __________________ 
Chief of Pediatrics                   Date 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Approvals Committee Date 
Credentials Committee  
Medical Executive Committee  
Board of Directors  

 
(Office use only) 

 

Psychiatry  2 
Rev.11/6/18 

74



 
Northern Inyo Hospital Medical Staff 

Clinical Privilege Request Form 
 
 

     Practitioner Name: ________________________________________________________     Date: _________________ 
Please Print 

Appointment cycle ________________ 
(Office use only) 

 
PEDIATRICS 

 
Instructions: Please check box next to each core privilege/special privilege requested.   

 

INITIAL CRITERIA 
Education/Formal Training:  
• Completed accredited residency training in Pediatrics. 
• Board Certified/Board Eligible by the American Board of Pediatrics or equivalent. 

INPATIENT CORE PRIVILEGES 
PALS and NRP required. STABLE preferred. 

Request • Admit, evaluate, diagnose, treat, perform H&P, and provide consultation to patients from birth to young 
adulthood (21 years of age) with acute and chronic disease including routine newborn care.  

• Attendance at delivery to assume care of newborns including stabilization and coordination of transfer of sick 
or premature infant. 

• Endotracheal intubation. 
 

 

OUTPATIENT CORE PRIVILEGES 
BLS or PALS required. 

Request • Assess, evaluate, stabilize and/or provide treatment to patients from birth to young adulthood (21 years of age) 
who presents to the outpatient pediatric clinic with any illness, condition, or symptom.  

• Evaluate, diagnose, perform H&P, consult, and provide non-surgical treatment to patients.  
 

 

SPECIAL PRIVILEGES 
(requires experience within last 2 years and recommendation by Chief of Pediatrics) 

 

 Arthrocentesis and joint injection 
 Application of cast/splint 
 Bladder catheterization 
 Burn management, 1st and 2nd degree 
 Cerumen impaction removal 
 Circumcision with clamp 
 Cryotherapy, skin 

 

 Conscious sedation (requires tutorial and current 
ACLS certificate) 

 Digital nerve/ring block anesthesia 
 Drainage of subungual hematoma 
 Frenulectomy 
 Incision and drainage of abscess 

 

 Insertion and management of chest tubes – emergent 
only 

 

 Insertion/removal of implanted contraceptive device 
(e.g. Nexplanon) 

 Intraosseous (IO) placement – emergent only 
 Local anesthetic techniques 

 
 

 
 

 Manage uncomplicated minor closed fractures and 
uncomplicated dislocations 

 

 Microscopic examination (urine, vaginal wet mount 
and skin preparations) 

 Nail removal 
 Perform simple skin biopsy or excision 
 Peripheral nerve blocks 
 Ligation of extra digit 
 Lumbar puncture – emergent only 
 Preliminary EKG interpretation – emergent only 

 

 Placement of anterior and posterior nasal hemostatic 
packing 

 

 Remove non-penetrating foreign body from the skin, 
eye, nose or ear 

 Skin tag – ligation 
 Suture uncomplicated lacerations 
 Suprapubic bladder tap – emergent only 
 Tympanometry 
 Umbilical catheterization – emergent only 
 Uncomplicated wound debridement 

 

CONSULTING PRIVILEGES 
(for Consulting Staff only) 

Request • Provide consultation, order, interpret, and evaluate diagnostic tests to identify and assess patients’ clinical 
problems and health care needs on request from Active or Provisional Staff members or Temporary Privileges 
Practitioners.   

 

 
Please sign acknowledgement on next page. 

Pediatrics  1 
Rev.11/6/18 

75



 
Northern Inyo Hospital Medical Staff 

Clinical Privilege Request Form 
 
 

     Practitioner Name: ________________________________________________________     Date: _________________ 
Please Print 

Appointment cycle ________________ 
(Office use only) 

 
 
 
Acknowledgment of Practitioner: 
I have requested only those privileges for which by education, training, health status, current experience and 
demonstrated performance I am qualified to perform and for which I wish to exercise and I understand that: 
 
(a) In exercising any clinical privileges granted, I am constrained by any Medical Staff Bylaws, Rules and 

Regulations, and policies and procedures applicable. 
(b) Any restriction on the clinical privileges granted to me is waived in an emergency situation and in such 

situation my actions are governed by the applicable section of the Medical Staff Bylaws or related documents. 
 
 
 
 
 
______________________________________________________________________          __________________ 
Practitioner Signature                         Date 
 
 

APPROVALS 
 
COMMENTS/MODIFICATIONS TO REQUESTED PRIVILEGES: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
______________________________________________________________________          __________________ 
______________________________________________________________________          __________________ 
Chief of Pediatrics                   Date 
 
 
______________________________________________________________________          __________________ 
Chief of Surgery                    Date 
 
 
 

 

Approvals Committee Date 
Credentials Committee  
Medical Executive Committee  
Board of Directors  

 
(Office use only) 

 

Pediatrics  2 
Rev.11/6/18 

76



 
Northern Inyo Hospital Medical Staff 

Clinical Privilege Request Form 
 
 

     Practitioner Name: ________________________________________________________     Date: _________________ 
Please Print 

Appointment cycle ________________ 
(Office use only) 

 
OBSTETRICS & GYNECOLOGY 

 
Instructions: Please check box next to each core privilege/special privilege requested. 

Draw a line through and initial next to any core privilege NOT requested. 
 

INITIAL CRITERIA 
Education/Formal Training:  
• Completed accredited residency training in Obstetrics and Gynecology. 
• Board Certified/Board Eligible by the American Board of Obstetrics and Gynecology or equivalent. 
• All practitioners requesting privileges to manage and attend births in Labor and Deliver at Northern Inyo Hospital will complete the 

appropriate BETA (Quest for Zero: Excellence in OB) requirements and will comply with NICHD terminology in the OB setting.  

INPATIENT CORE PRIVILEGES 

Request • Admit, evaluate, diagnose, consult, perform H&P, and manage the care of female patients in any condition or 
stage of pregnancy who present to the hospital or Emergency Department.  

• Admit, evaluate, diagnose, consult, perform H&P, and provide pre-operative, intra-operative and post-operative 
care for management of female patients presenting with illness, injury, disorders of the gynecologic or 
genitourinary system. 

• Vaginal delivery 
• Hysterectomy 
• Cesarean section 
• Cesarean hysterectomy 
• Diagnostic cystoscopy 
• Diagnostic and operative hysteroscopy 
• Diagnostic and operative laparoscopy 
• Diagnostic and operative laparotomy 
• Adnexal surgery 
• Ultrasound 
• Suburethral slings 

 

OUTPATIENT CORE PRIVILEGES 
**Current BLS or ACLS required** 

Request • Assess, evaluate, diagnose, consult, perform H&P, and manage the care of female patients in any condition or 
stage of pregnancy or with illness, injury, or disorders of the gynecologic or genitourinary system who present to 
the outpatient clinic. 
 

 

SPECIAL PRIVILEGES 
(requires experience within the last 2 years) 

 Circumcision with clamp, pediatric only 
 Robotic Surgery (per Robotic credentialing policy) 

 

 
 

Insertion/removal of implanted contraceptive device 
(e.g. Nexplanon) 

 Cervical cerclage  
 

CONSULTING PRIVILEGES 
(for Consulting Staff only) 

Request • Provide consultation, order, interpret, and evaluate diagnostic tests to identify and assess patients’ clinical 
problems and health care needs on request from Active or Provisional Staff members or Temporary Privileges 
Practitioners.   

 

 
Please sign acknowledgment on next page. 

 
 
 
 
 

Obstetrics & Gynecology  1 
Rev.09/26/2018 

77



 
Northern Inyo Hospital Medical Staff 

Clinical Privilege Request Form 
 
 

     Practitioner Name: ________________________________________________________     Date: _________________ 
Please Print 

Appointment cycle ________________ 
(Office use only) 

 
 
Acknowledgment of Practitioner: 
I have requested only those privileges for which by education, training, health status, current experience and 
demonstrated performance I am qualified to perform and for which I wish to exercise and I understand that: 
 
(a) In exercising any clinical privileges granted, I am constrained by any Medical Staff Bylaws, Rules and 

Regulations, and policies and procedures applicable. 
(b) Any restriction on the clinical privileges granted to me is waived in an emergency situation and in such 

situation my actions are governed by the applicable section of the Medical Staff Bylaws or related documents. 
 
 
 
 
______________________________________________________________________          __________________ 
Practitioner Signature                         Date 
 
 
 

APPROVALS 
 
COMMENTS/MODIFICATIONS TO REQUESTED PRIVILEGES: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
______________________________________________________________________          __________________ 
Chief of Obstetrics                   Date 
 
 
______________________________________________________________________          __________________ 
Chief of Surgery                    Date 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Approvals Committee Date 
Credentials Committee  
Medical Executive Committee  
Board of Directors  

 
(Office use only) 

 

Obstetrics & Gynecology  2 
Rev.09/26/2018 

78



 
Northern Inyo Hospital Medical Staff 

Clinical Privilege Request Form 
 
 

     Practitioner Name: ________________________________________________________     Date: _________________ 
Please Print 

Appointment cycle ________________ 
(Office use only) 

 

FAMILY MEDICINE 
Instructions: Please check box next to each core privilege/special privilege requested.   

 

INITIAL CRITERIA 
Education/Formal Training:  
• Completed accredited residency training in family medicine. 
• Board Certified/Board Eligible by the American Board of Family Medicine OR equivalent. 

OUTPATIENT CORE PRIVILEGES 
**Current BLS or ACLS required**  

• Assess, evaluate, stabilize and/or provide treatment to patients of any age who present to the outpatient environment with 
any illness, condition or symptom. 

• Evaluate, diagnose, perform H&P, consult, and provide non-surgical treatment to a patient of any age. 

Primary Care 
 Incision and drainage of abscess, excluding peri-rectal 
 Allergy immunotherapy 
 Anoscopy 
 Arthrocentesis/joint injections 
 Incision and drainage of Bartholin’s cyst/abscess 
 Bladder catheterization 
 Bone marrow aspiration/biopsy 
 Burn management, 1st and 2nd degree 
 Aspiration of breast cyst 
 Application of cast/splint 
 Cancer chemotherapy(in consultation with oncologist) 
 Cerumen impaction removal 
 Cervical dilation (mechanical) 
 Removal of cervical polyps, simple 
 Circumcision with clamp, pediatric only 
 Colposcopy, with or without cervical biopsy 
 Cryotherapy, skin 
 Cryotherapy, cervix 
 Dermoscopy 
 Endometrial biopsy 
 Flexible sigmoidoscopy 
 

 

Foreign body removal (skin, superficial 
corneal/conjunctival, nose and ear) 

 Ganglion cyst aspiration/injection 
 Incision of thrombosed external hemorrhoid, simple 

 Insertion/removal of implanted contraceptive device 
(eg, Nexplanon) 

 Insertion/removal of intrauterine device (IUD) 
 Laceration repair, simple  
 Lumbar puncture 

 
 

Primary Care (continued) 
 

 

Microscopic examination  (urine, vaginal wet mount 
and skin preparations) 

 Myringotomy/tympanocentesis 
 Nail removal 
 Paracervical block 
 Pessary placement 
 Digital nerve/ring block anesthesia 
 Injection sclerotherapy (telangectases only) 
 Skin biopsy (excisional, shave, or punch) 
 Soft tissue injections/trigger point injections 
 Drainage of subungual hematoma 
 Tonometry 
 Tympanometry 
 Application of Unna paste boot 
 Vasectomy 
 Uncomplicated wound debridement 

 

Obstetrics/Gynecology 
 Endocervical curettage 
 Vulvar/vaginal biopsy 
 Abdominal/transvaginal OB/GYN ultrasonography 
 Saline infusion hysterosonography 

 

Physical Examinations 
 Pre-employment physicals 
 

 

Commercial driving medical exams (DOT Medical 
Examiner’s Certificate required) 

 Disability evaluations 
 

 

Independent medical evaluations (Workman’s 
Compensation) 

 Return to work evaluations 
 

ADULT INPATIENT CORE PRIVILEGES 
Requires inpatient experience within the last 2 years, current ACLS certification, and recommendation by Hospitalist Director. 

 

 Admit, evaluate, diagnose, perform H&P, consult and provide nonsurgical treatment to adult patients presenting with 
general medical problems. 

 Admit, evaluate, diagnose, perform H&P, consult and provide nonsurgical treatment to adult patients presenting with 
critical illnesses, needing ICU care. 

 Ventilator management. 
 

Family Medicine  1 
Rev.11/6/18 

79



 
Northern Inyo Hospital Medical Staff 

Clinical Privilege Request Form 
 
 

     Practitioner Name: ________________________________________________________     Date: _________________ 
Please Print 

Appointment cycle ________________ 
(Office use only) 

SPECIAL PRIVILEGES 
All require experience within last 2 years 

 
 

Well newborn care/admit to nursery (NRP and 
recommendation by Chief of Pediatrics required) 

 
 

Pediatric consultation and admission (advanced 
experience managing peds/newborns; NRP required, 
PALS preferred; approval by Chief of Pediatrics) 

 
 

Conscious sedation (requires tutorial and current 
ACLS certificate per Procedural Sedation policy) 

 
 

Surgical first assist (requires experience in last 2 years 
and recommendation by Chief of Surgery) 

 

Special Privileges in Obstetrics: require experience in last 
2 years and recommendation by Chief of OB/GYN 

 Vaginal delivery; spontaneous 
 Vacuum-assisted vaginal delivery 
 

 
Episiotomy and repair of vaginal lacerations (1st and 
2nd degree only; 3rd/4th degree must consult OB) 

 Manual extraction of the placenta 
 FSE application/IUPC insertion 
 Induction of labor/cervical ripening 

 

 
Acknowledgment of Practitioner: 
I have requested only those privileges for which by education, training, health status, current experience and 
demonstrated performance I am qualified to perform and for which I wish to exercise and I understand that: 
 
(a) In exercising any clinical privileges granted, I am constrained by any Medical Staff Bylaws, Rules and 

Regulations, and policies and procedures applicable. 
(b) Any restriction on the clinical privileges granted to me is waived in an emergency situation and in such 

situation my actions are governed by the applicable section of the Medical Staff Bylaws or related documents. 
 
 
_____________________________________________________________________          __________________ 
Practitioner Signature                         Date 

 
APPROVALS 

COMMENTS/MODIFICATIONS TO REQUESTED PRIVILEGES: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________ 
RHC/Outpatient Clinic Medical Director               Date 

 
____________________________________________ 
Chief of Medicine                                                   Date 

 
 
_____________________________________________ 
Chief of Pediatrics                                                   Date 

 
 
____________________________________________ 
Chief of Surgery                                                     Date 

 
 
_____________________________________________ 
Chief of Obstetrics                                                  Date 

 
 
____________________________________________ 
Hospitalist Director                                                 Date 

 
 

Approvals Committee Date 
Credentials Committee  
Medical Executive Committee  
Board of Directors  

(Office use only) 

 

Family Medicine  2 
Rev.11/6/18 

80




